
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS ON MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 24, 2007, AT 7:00 P.M. 

 
Members present: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. 

Weisiger, H. Judson Lambert 
   
Members absent: None 
 
Others present: Town Manager C. Wayne Sutherland, Jr., Town Clerk Sharon P. Hackler, 

Assistant Town Manager Stephen A. Moore, Town Attorney Robert P. 
Kaase, Police Officer Chris Irvin, Danny Gordon with WYVE/WXBX, Bill 
Smith, Aaron Foster, Kerry Eans, Jeff Cochran, J. B. Willis, Marjorie 
Willis, David Saliba, Betty Campbell, Louise Crockett, Agnes Eades, T. L. 
Wright, Clayton Wright 

 
RE:  CALL TO ORDER, QUORUM, INVOCATION, PLEDGE 
 
Mayor Crewe called the meeting to order and established that a quorum of Council members 
was present. The invocation was given by Councilman Lambert followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance led by Councilman Weisiger.  
 
RE:  CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Mayor Crewe presented the consent agenda consisting of the minutes of the regular meeting of 
September 10, 2007, and the request of George Wythe High School to conduct a homecoming 
parade on Thursday, October 18, 2007, at 5:30 p.m. A motion was made by Councilman 
Weisiger and seconded by Councilman Lambert to approve the consent agenda consisting of 
the minutes of the regular meeting of September 10, 2007, and the request of George Wythe 
High School to conduct a homecoming parade on Thursday, October 18, 2007, at 5:30 p.m. 
Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion 
was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. 
Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, H. Judson Lambert. 
Against: None. 
 
RE: CITIZENS’ PERIOD 
 
Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is Citizens’ Period. He inquired if there are persons 
present who wished to address the Town Council during Citizens’ Period. 
 
Mayor Crewe noted that Mr. Jeff Cochran had placed a question mark by his name to speak 
and noted that the Council will be glad to hear from Mr. Cochran at this time. Mr. Cochran 
advised that he is on the agenda for the Fairfield Glade Subdivision. Mayor Crewe stated he did 
not know if Mr. Cochran wished to speak now or when the subdivision is considered. Mr. 
Cochran noted he will wait to speak when the subdivision is considered for approval. 
 
Mayor Crewe inquired if Mr. David Saliba would like to speak at this time or wait until the 
Walgreens special exception permit is considered. Mr. Saliba advised that he will wait to speak 
when the special exception permit is considered. 
 
Mayor Crewe inquired if there is anyone else who wished to address the Council during 
Citizens’ Period. There being none, he proceeded with the agenda. 
 
RE: OLD BUSINESS 
 
Under Old Business, Town Manager Sutherland reported the following: 
 
1. Town Manager Sutherland reported that he met with Town Treasurer Stephens this 

afternoon. Town Treasurer Stephens advised that he now has all the information from 
the Commissioner of the Revenue on personal property taxes, i.e. vehicles. As the 
Council knows, several years ago, the State changed the law with regard to the 
procedure where car taxes were eliminated, and then they reimbursed communities a 
certain percent. When the budget was adopted this past year, the reimbursement that 
was established in the budget document was 61.9%, and as the Council knew at that 
time, it was an estimate until the Commissioner actually provided the Town with all the 
data for the year. As it turns out, the reimbursement percentage from the State will need 
to be established at 63.26%. The estimate was close, but the Town Treasurer would ask 
that the Council establish 63.26% as the reimbursement rate for the Personal Property 
Tax Relief Act. Mayor Crewe inquired if the Council should take action on this at this 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 



meeting or wait until the Committee meetings or inquired if it mattered. Town Manager 
Sutherland noted that the Town Treasurer would request that the Council take action on 
this matter at this meeting. A motion was made by Councilman Jones and seconded by 
Vice-Mayor King to establish the State reimbursement rate at 63.26% for the Personal 
Property Tax Relief Act. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motion. 
There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there 
being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., 
William B. Weisiger, H. Judson Lambert. Against: None. 

 
2. Both of the Council Committees will meet on their regular day and time this week. 
 
RE: BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
  
Councilman Jones, reporting for the Budget and Finance Committee, reported that at the 
August 13 meeting of Council, the Town Council approved the increase in fees for opening and 
closing of cemetery spaces. He noted that these revisions increased the opening and closing 
fees but also established an additional fee for funerals that begin after 2:00 p.m. Councilman 
Jones explained that the reason these fees were increased was to offset the expenses that the 
Town incurs with paying employees overtime to perform these duties for funerals which begin 
later in the afternoon. He stated the Town has received several comments with regard to these 
increases and has found that on days when funeral homes have two or more funerals in one 
day, this time constraint could impose certain problems. Councilman Jones advised that the 
Committee believes that the simplest solution to eliminate any of these types of problems would 
be to establish one opening and closing fee that would be effective regardless of the beginning 
time of a funeral. He stated that as such, it would be the recommendation of the Budget and 
Finance Committee that the opening and closing fees be increased to $500, which is the 
effective rate regardless of the beginning time of the funeral. Councilman Jones advised that the 
Committee would note, though, that there are still additional fees for openings and closings for 
Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays. A motion was made by Councilman Jones and seconded by 
Vice-Mayor King to increase the opening and closing fees to $500 for all funerals effective 
immediately. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motion. Councilman 
Weisiger inquired as to how much the fee was previously. Vice-Mayor King noted that the fee 
was $350.00. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any further discussion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition:  For: 
Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, H. Judson 
Lambert. Against: None. Mayor Crewe noted that these new fees will become effective 
immediately. 
 
Councilman Jones also reported that the Committee reported in July that the Town had been 
contacted by representatives from Davenport and Company, who is a well respected investment 
advisory firm throughout Virginia. He noted at that time, they advised that the Town may want to 
consider refinancing all the existing Rural Development loans in an effort to reduce annual 
payments. Councilman Jones indicated that Town staff met this week with representatives from 
Davenport and Company who advise that they will start soliciting banks to consider purchasing 
these outstanding bonds. He stated that representatives from Davenport and Company noted it 
could not be predicted exactly when this refinancing would occur since it is triggered by a 
particular bank’s interest for purchasing these types of bonds. He stated the representatives did 
note, however, that they were confident the Town could refinance its existing bonds and have 
an annual savings in debt service. Councilman Jones noted the representatives also noted that 
they would contact the Town at the point in time when it seemed advisable to proceed with the 
refinancing, and the Council could make a determination at that time. He stated there are no 
expenses associated with their efforts until the actual bond refinancing does occur. Councilman 
Jones advised that no action is required of the Council at this time, but the Committee does 
think it is a worthwhile exercise attempting to reduce the Town’s annual debt service payments. 
A copy of the Budget and Finance Committee report is attached and made part of these 
minutes. (Attachment).
 
RE: PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Councilman Lambert, reporting for the Public Works Committee, reported that the Committee 
has reviewed the request of The Fairfield Glade Company to reduce the required pavement 
width in the subdivision known as Fairfield Glade, which is located on the north side of North 
Fourth Street between Stafford Umberger Drive and Tremough Drive, in an R-3 Residential 
District. He stated that after reviewing the request and discussing the requirements of the 
Virginia Department of Transportation, the Committee would recommend, as did the Planning 
Commission, that the Council approve the request of The Fairfield Glade Company to reduce 
the required pavement width in the subdivision known as Fairfield Glade, which is located on the 
north side of North Fourth Street between Stafford Umberger Drive and Tremough Drive, in an 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 



R-3 Residential District from 30 feet to 24 feet, with the exception that the following streets have 
30 feet of pavement width: (a) Fairfield Way from the intersection of US Route 52 to its 
intersection with Robin Road, approximately 1,700 feet from the subdivision entrance; and (b) 
Robin Road throughout its length from Fairfield Way to its intersection with George James 
Drive, approximately 1,050 feet. A motion was made by Councilman Lambert and seconded by 
Councilman Weisiger to approve the request of The Fairfield Glade Company to reduce the 
pavement width in the subdivision known as Fairfield Glade, which is located on the north side 
of North Fourth Street between Stafford Umberger Drive and Tremough Drive, in an R-3 
Residential District from 30 feet to 24 feet, with the exception that the following streets have 30 
feet of pavement width: (a) Fairfield Way from the intersection of US Route 52 to its intersection 
with Robin Road, approximately 1,700 feet from the subdivision entrance; and (b) Robin Road 
throughout its length from Fairfield Way to its intersection with George James Drive, 
approximately 1,050 feet. Mayor Crewe noted that the Town Council will be glad to hear from 
Mr. Jeff Cochran and Mr. Bill Smith at this time if they desired to address the Council, but noted 
they did not have to speak if they did not desire to do so. He pointed out that the motion on the 
floor is to approve the request, except for Fairfield Way and Robin Road. Mayor Crewe advised 
that he has one question, but noted he knew the answer based on the Planning Commission 
meeting. He inquired if this solution would be acceptable to the developers. Mr. Smith and Mr. 
Cochran noted that this approval is acceptable to them. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any 
further discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the following 
voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, 
John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger. H. Judson Lambert. Against: None. Mayor Crewe 
noted that this approval is now effective. 
 
Councilman Lambert also reported that there are two matters relating to traffic control that the 
Committee would like to recommend. He advised that they are as follows: (a) Councilman 
Lambert indicated that the Committee would recommend that the restriction on two-hour parking 
on the north side of Spring Street between Church Street and First Street be eliminated. 
Councilman Lambert advised that the Committee has had requests from residents in this area 
noting that the current parking restrictions pose certain problems. He stated the Committee 
would recommend that the restrictions along this section of roadway be eliminated, but that the 
Town continue to monitor this area to determine if there are any other problems associated with 
the elimination of the two-hour parking restriction. (b) Councilman Lambert also stated that the 
Committee would recommend that the intersection of Grayson Road and Old Stage Road be 
reconfigured. He explained that vehicles that are proceeding eastwardly on Old Stage Road as 
it approaches Grayson Road are entering Grayson Road in a relatively blind curve. Councilman 
Lambert stated there is an alternative solution at this location for eastbound traffic on Old Stage 
Road using the paved area between the islands as the entrance to Grayson Road. Councilman 
Lambert indicated that this would mean that vehicles proceeding southwardly on Grayson Road 
and then proceeding westwardly on Old Stage Road would have one section of one-way traffic. 
He indicated that the Committee has attached a sketch of this reconfiguration for the Council’s 
review. Councilman Lambert remarked that the Committee believes that this reconfiguration 
would create a safer situation at this location and would recommend that the Council proceed. A 
motion was made by Councilman Lambert and seconded by Councilman Weisiger that the 
Council eliminate the two-hour parking restriction on the north side of Spring Street between 
Church Street and First Street, and that the Council also reconfigure the intersection of Grayson 
Road and Old Stage Road such that the eastbound traffic on Old Stage Road would use the 
paved area between the islands as the entrance to Grayson Road and vehicles proceeding 
southwardly on Grayson Road and then proceeding westward on Old Stage Road would have 
one section of one-way traffic. Mayor Crewe advised that there are two parts to the motion, and 
one is that the Council eliminate two-hour parking on the north side of Spring Street between 
Church and First Streets, and, second, that the Council reconfigure the intersection of Grayson 
Road and Old Stage Road. He inquired if there is any discussion on the motion. Mayor Crewe 
stated the only thing he worries about on Grayson Road is traffic stacking up to make a left 
hand turn coming into town on Route 21, and someone coming around the curve by the 
Children’s Home. Mayor Crewe stated the Town needs to watch to make sure there is enough 
area in between those two islands for two lanes. He indicated that he thinks there is, but the 
signage, marking on the pavement, etc. will probably solve this problem. Mayor Crewe advised 
that everyone needs to be aware of this when it is first changed. He inquired if there is any 
further discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the following 
voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, 
John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, H. Judson Lambert. Against: None. A copy of the 
Public Works Committee report is attached and made part of these minutes. (Attachment).
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 



RE: SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT – MID-ATLANTIC PROPERTIES, INCORPORATED 
 
Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is to consider the recommendation of the Planning 
Commission regarding the request of Mid-Atlantic Commercial Properties, Incorporated for a 
special exception permit to operate a Walgreens Pharmacy on property located on the west side 
of North Fourth Street between West Ridge Road and West Fulton Street in an MA-1 Medical 
Arts District (properties presently occupied by Dr. Thomas Hunter and Dr. James McConnell). 
He indicated that this went to the Planning Commission, and the Town Council has their 
recommendation that the request not be approved. Mayor Crewe stated the Town Council 
would ordinarily set a public hearing, which the Council could do and meet the required 
advertisement guidelines and set it for October 22, 2007. It was the consensus of the Town 
Council to set a public hearing for the October 22, 2007, Town Council meeting to consider the 
request of Mid-Atlantic Commercial Properties, Incorporated for a special exception permit to 
operate a Walgreens Pharmacy on property located on the west side of North Fourth Street 
between West Ridge Road and West Fulton Street in an MA-1 Medical Arts District (properties 
presently occupied by Dr. Thomas Hunter and Dr. James McConnell). Mayor Crewe stated the 
Town Council would be glad to hear from Mr. David Saliba if he desired to address the Council. 
 
Mr. David Saliba stated he is attending the meeting on behalf of Mid-Atlantic Commercial 
Properties. He noted that, obviously, no one is attending the meeting with him. Mr. Saliba 
indicated that the Town Council has taken the action he was going to request to be taken. He 
stated that, specifically, they do want to have the opportunity to hold a public hearing and to 
impress the Council with a presentation. Mr. Saliba indicated that pending the public hearing, he 
wanted to answer any questions the Council may have and to offer to address any specific 
points at the October 22 meeting that the Council may be interested in hearing more about. 
Mayor Crewe indicated that Mr. Saliba may know, but in the Council’s packet, they have the 
information from the Planning Commission, and not only what the Planning Commission 
received, but their action afterwards. He inquired if anyone has any questions or comments for 
Mr. Saliba. Mr. Saliba indicated that one issue that was discussed by one of the members was 
the reopening or the improvement of Sixth Street. He inquired if there is any consideration by 
the Town as to improving this street, and inquired if there would be any interest by the Town, if 
Walgreens were approved, in working with the developer for the improvement of that portion of 
roadway. Mayor Crewe stated he will answer this based on discussions the Council has had 
over the years and discussions that came out in the Planning Commission meeting. He noted 
that Mr. Saliba was in attendance at the Planning Commission meeting, so Mr. Saliba would 
know better than he does. Mayor Crewe advised that at the present, he does not think the Town 
sees any need to do anything to Sixth Street. He stated if Walgreens were to be approved and 
constructed, it might be worth looking at opening this street. Mayor Crewe remarked that this 
would be a factor in his mind, at least, that would change the traffic flow enough to consider 
opening the street, and noted he thinks this is a fair statement, unless someone else has a 
different opinion. Mr. Saliba advised that for the record, the initial idea was not to open Sixth 
Street, but if this is something the Town would be interested in, certainly, this would be 
something in which the developer would be interested in participating. Mayor Crewe thanked 
Mr. Saliba for his comments. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any other discussion on the 
setting of a public hearing to consider this matter. There being none, it was the consensus of the 
Town Council to set a public hearing for the October 22, 2007, Council meeting to consider the 
request of Mid-Atlantic Commercial Properties, Incorporated for a special exception permit to 
operate a Walgreens Pharmacy on property located on the west side of North Fourth Street 
between West Ridge Road and West Fulton Street in an MA-1 Medical Arts District (properties 
presently occupied by Dr. Thomas Hunter and Dr. James McConnell). 
 
RE: HOMESTEAD MUSEUM FESTIVAL 
 
Vice-Mayor King advised that she would like to compliment the Homestead Museum Festival on 
Saturday. Mayor Crewe noted that the Town staff did a good job. Vice-Mayor King stated that 
the festival was awesome, and it was bigger and better than last year. Mayor Crewe advised 
that there were more people and more exhibitors.  
 
RE: BOY SCOUTS 
 
Mayor Crewe noted that the Council is glad to have the Boy Scouts in attendance. He inquired if 
there is anything the Council needs to accomplish on behalf of the Boy Scouts. Mr. Wright 
thanked the Council for permitting the Boy Scouts to be present at the meeting. Mayor Crewe 
thanked the Boy Scouts for attending the meeting.  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

RE: ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to be discussed, a motion was duly made, seconded, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting (7:20 p.m.).  
 
 
 
             

Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
 
        
Sharon P. Hackler, MMC, Clerk of Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\COUNCIL\Minutes\2007\Council Minutes 092407.doc 



 BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 SEPTEMBER 24, 2007 

 
1. At the August 13 meeting of Council, we approved the increase in fees for opening 

and closing of cemetery spaces. These revisions increased the opening and 

closing fees but also established an additional fee for funerals that begin after 2:00 

p.m. The reason these fees were increased was to offset the expenses the Town 

incurs with paying employees overtime to perform these duties for funerals which 

begin later in the afternoon. We have received several comments with regard to 

these increases and find that on days when funeral homes have two or more 

funerals in one day, this time constraint could impose certain problems. We believe 

the simplest solution to eliminate any of these types of problems would be to 

establish one opening and closing fee that would be effective regardless of the 

beginning time of a funeral. As such, it would be the recommendation of the 

Budget and Finance Committee that the opening and closing fees be increased to 

$500, which is the effective rate regardless of the beginning time of the funeral. We 

would note, though, that there are still additional fees for openings and closings for 

Saturdays, Sundays, and holiday. 

 

2. Our Committee reported in July that we had been contacted by representatives 

from Davenport and Company, who is a well respected investment advisory firm 

throughout Virginia. At that time, they advised that the Town may want to consider 

refinancing all the existing Rural Development loans in an effort to reduce annual 

payments. Town staff met this week with representatives from Davenport and 

 
 1 



 
 2 

Company who advise that they will start soliciting banks to consider purchasing 

these outstanding bonds. Representatives from Davenport and Company noted 

that it could not be predicted exactly when this refinancing would occur since it is 

triggered by a particular bank’s interest for purchasing these types of bonds. They 

did note, however, that they were confident we could refinance our existing bonds 

and have an annual savings in debt service. The representatives also noted that 

they would contact the Town at the point in time when it seemed advisable to 

proceed with the refinancing, and the Council could make a determination at that 

time. There are no expenses associated with their efforts until the actual bond 

refinancing does occur. No action is required of the Council at this time, but we do 

think it is a worthwhile exercise attempting to reduce our annual debt service 

payments. 

 

              
                          Jacqueline K. King 

 
 
 
                                    

  John W. Jones, Jr. 
 
 
 
H:\COUNCIL\BFCOMMIT.RPT\2007\BFSEP24.doc 



 
 1 

  
 
 PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
 SEPTEMBER 24, 2007 
 

1. Our Committee has reviewed the request of The Fairfield Glade Company to reduce 

the required pavement width in the subdivision known as Fairfield Glade, which is 

located on the north side of North Fourth Street between Stafford Umberger Drive 

and Tremough Drive, in an R-3 Residential District. 

 

After reviewing the request and discussing the requirements of the Virginia 

Department of Transportation, our Committee would recommend, as did the 

Planning Commission, that the Council approve the request of The Fairfield Glade 

Company to reduce the required pavement width in the subdivision known as 

Fairfield Glade, which is located on the north side of North Fourth Street between 

Stafford Umberger Drive and Tremough Drive, in an R-3 Residential District from 30 

feet to 24 feet, with the exception that the following streets have 30 feet of pavement 

width: 

 

a. Fairfield Way from the intersection of US Route 52 to its intersection with 

Robin Road, approximately 1,700 feet from the subdivision entrance; and, 

 

b. Robin Road throughout its length from Fairfield Way to its intersection with 

George James Drive, approximately 1,050 feet. 

 



 
 2 

2. There are two matters relating to traffic control that our Committee would like to 

recommend. They are as follows: 

a. We would recommend that the restriction on two-hour parking on the north 

side of Spring Street between Church Street and First Street be eliminated. 

We have had requests from residents in this area noting that the current 

parking restrictions pose certain problems. We would recommend that the 

restrictions along this section of roadway be eliminated, but that we continue 

to monitor this area to determine if there are any other problems associated 

with the elimination of the two-hour parking restriction. 

 
 

b. We would recommend that the intersection of Grayson Road and Old Stage 

Road be reconfigured. Vehicles that are proceeding eastwardly on Old Stage 

Road as it approaches Grayson Road are entering Grayson Road in a 

relatively blind curve. There is an alternative solution at this location for 

eastbound traffic on Old Stage Road using the paved area between the 

islands as the entrance to Grayson Road. This would mean that vehicles 

proceeding southwardly on Grayson Road and then proceeding westwardly 

on Old Stage Road would have one section of one-way traffic. We have 

attached a sketch of this reconfiguration for your review. We believe that this 

reconfiguration would create a safer situation at this location and would 

recommend that we proceed. 

 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
REQUEST BY DR. TAYLOR WHO IS LOCATED AT 210 SPRING STREET.  

THE REQUEST IS TO MAKE THE ENTRANCE FROM GRAYSON ROAD 

ONTO OLD STAGE ROAD ONE WAY.  THE VEHICLES ENTERING ONTO 

GRAYSON ROAD WILL DO SO FROM WHERE THE ARROW IS ON OLD 

STAGE ROAD.  THIS WOULD GIVE BETTER OPTIONS ON VISIBILITY 

AND A SECOND OR TWO IN SEEING ONCOMING TRAFFIC OFF OF 

WEST MAIN STREET WHICH HAS A TENDENCY TO BE SPEEDING DUE 

TO THE GRADE AND OTHER FACTORS. 
 
 
             
              William B. Weisiger 
 
 
             

              H. Judson Lambert 
H:\COUNCIL\PWCOMMIT.RPT\2007\PWSEP24.doc 

 
 3 


	Minutes of the regular meeting of September 24, 2007

	Budget and Finance Committee Report

	Public Works Committee Report



	Text1: BACK


